
 

 

 
c/o Mid Ohio Regional Planning Commission                            614/228/2663 
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100t  Columbus, Ohio 43215        fax 614/228-1904 

 
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

JOINT COLUMBUS AND FRANKLIN COUNTY 

HOUSING ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Tuesday, March 8, 2016 

1:30 – 3:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

1. Welcome & Introductions 

 

2. Election of Officers  
 

3. Approval of January 13, 2015, Minutes  
 

4. Board Administration – Updates 

 Bylaws Review and Vote 

 Conflict of Interest Policy 

 

5. Project Application  
 

Project Name: Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 

Applicant: Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority 

 

Rehabilitation of 253 existing affordable housing units requesting $16 million in 

Franklin County Multifamily Revenue Bonds 
 

6. Application Review 

 Green Affordable Housing Checklist 

 Application Fee 

 

7. 2015 Annual Report  
 

8. Other Business  
 

Please notify Rachael Beeman at 614-233-4123 or rbeeman@morpc.org to confirm your  

attendance for this meeting or if you require special assistance. 

 

The next meeting of the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board is planned 

 

Tuesday, May 10, 2015, 11:00 a.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. Each meeting will list a phone 
extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with an 
“M.”  Handicapped parking is available at the side of MORPC’s building.  MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

mailto:rbeeman@morpc.org


JOINT COLUMBUS AND  

FRANKLIN COUNTY 

HOUSING ADVISORY BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

Tuesday, January 13, 2015 

11:30 a.m. 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

Members Present: 

Catharine Cawthon, President 

Steve Gladman, Vice President 

Danielle Alexander 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Sharon Francis 

Shannon Hardin 

Stephanie Hightower 

Theresa Saelim 

Nancy White 

Members Absent: 

Terry Brown 

Ken Danter 

Charles Hillman 

Michelle Mills 

Robert Weiler 

HAB Staff Present: 

Christina O’Keeffe, Secretary 

Ruth Yorston 

 

Guests: 

Stephanie Andrian, Columbus Urban League 

Bryan Brown, Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority 

Bill Conard, Bricker  

Julie DeGraaf Velazquez, McCormack Baron Salazar 

Mary Drew, Red Capital Group 

Joseph Hague, Red Capital Group 

William Murdock, Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Devyn Paros, City of Columbus 

Jim Schimmer, Franklin County Economic Development & Planning 

 

 

Call to Order 

Catherine Cawthon called the meeting to order at 11:35 a.m. 

Election of Officers 

Catherine Cawthon and Steve Gladman were presented for election as Chair and Vice Chair, 

respectively.  Christina O’Keeffe was identified as Secretary as the MORPC designee, which is the 

position held by MORPC in its agreement with Franklin County to administer the HAB. Ms. Cawthon 

called for a motion to approve the election.  Stephanie Hightower so moved and Nancy White 

provided a second.  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Approval of July 9, 2013 Minutes 

Ms. Cawthon asked for any corrections to the July 9, 2013, minutes.  No changes were noted.  Ms. 

Cawthon called for a motion to accept the minutes as presented.  Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher so 

moved and Nancy White provided the second.  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

2014 Annual Report 

Ruth Yorston provided a review of the HAB 2014 Annual Report.  No applications were received in 

2014.  Projects that the HAB reviews and then are issued bonds through Franklin County are 

monitored annually for ten years after the project begins renting units.  Six projects were monitored; 

all projects were in compliance.  The City of Columbus appointed or reappointed seven members to 

the HAB.   

Application –Poindexter Phase IIA 

Bryan Brown, Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority (CMHA), presented an application for a bond 

issuance of $12M.  

Background.  This application is for 87 units of multi-family housing and is the second phase 

of the redevelopment of the 24-acre Poindexter Village property.  It is part of the Near East 

Side neighborhood that received a $30M Choice Neighborhood grant from HUD.   

The Poindexter site, including Phase IIA, encompasses 104 senior units and up to 350 family 

units, new public infrastructure, green space, and amenities.  Phase IIA units include 18 one-

bedroom, 57 two-bedroom, and 12 three-bedroom units.  There will be a combination of 

affordable, public housing assisted, and market rate units 

Expected Project Timeline.   

Final OHFA Application .......................... February 6, 2015 

Financial Closing .................................... September 2015 

Construction Start .................................. September 2015 

Final Building Placed in Service ............ March 2017 

100% Qualified Occupancy ................... July 2014 

Sources and Uses of Projects Funds.  Sources include an FHA 221(d)(4),40-year mortgage, 

Franklin County tax-exempt bonds, Ohio Housing Finance Authority Housing Development 

Assistance Program funds, a Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority Choice grant, City of 

Columbus bond funds, a developer fee contribution from the Columbus Metropolitan Housing 

Authority, tax credit equity, and a deferred developer fee.   

Red Capital Group will underwrite the Franklin County tax-exempt bonds, which will be 

publically issued. 

Tax credits are allocated if at least 50% of a development is financed through tax-exempt 

bonds and meets several other requirements.  If the County issues the requested $12M in 



bonds, those funds will be leveraged so the project is eligible to receive nearly $5M in tax 

credits.  

Uses include development costs, HUD-required deposits, bond costs, and FHA/GNMA costs.  

Questions and Answers.  Members of HAB presented the following questions for discussion: 

Question CMHA Response 

Who will property manage Poindexter 

Phase 1? 

The senior building will be managed by 

National Church Residences and 

McCormack Baron Management (MBM) will 

manage the remaining residential units.   

Does MBM plan to remain involved 

throughout the entire compliance period? 

Yes.  MBM is a long-term property 

management company. 

Are the live-work spaces included in the 

affordable housing units?   

The live-work units will be market rate and 

will rent for $800 per month.  A renter may 

choose to use the unit only as office space, 

which makes those units ineligible for tax 

credits.   

What green/high-performance features 

are included? 

The development is incorporating the City of 

Columbus and Franklin County’s AWARE 

guidelines, following the Enterprise 

Community Green Standards, and applying 

for LEED for Neighborhood Development 

certification. 

What kind of investments will be made to 

assist neighborhood residents afford 

market-rate housing units? 

All of the units will be construction to the 

same market-rate standard.  The Poindexter 

“People” strategy is to help people move up 

the economic ladder.  The premise of HUD’s 

Choice Neighborhood is that as residents 

become more economically stable, they 

transition to smaller rental subsidies while 

remaining in the same unit.  As one 

household transitions to a smaller subsidy, 

those funds are then available for another 

household to utilize.   

What are you doing with the vacant and 

abandoned housing in the neighborhood? 

The City of Columbus, CMHA, and PACT are 

developing the strategy, which is in the early 

formulation stage.  PACT created a targeted 

map to identify any critical mass of vacant 



and/or abandoned properties, especially 

those adjacent or near the Poindexter 

Village development.   

Do you contract with existing nonprofits to 

provide the services in the “People” 

category? 

Yes.  Urban Strategies is national nonprofit 

that convenes and coordinates local 

nonprofit service providers. 

 

Action:  Ms. Cawthon called for a motion to recommend for approval, decline, or request for 

additional information.  Stephanie Hightower moved that the HAB recommend the project for 

approval; Danielle Alexander provided the second.  The motion passed by voice vote with four 

abstentions:  Sharon Francis, Steve Gladman, Shannon Hardin, and Theresa Saelim.   

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 12:28 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Christina O’Keeffe, Secretary 

Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board 

 

CO/ry 



1

(Date of Adoption)

1

JOINT COLUMBUS AND FRANKLIN COUNTY

HOUSING ADVISORY BOARD

BYLAWS

ARTICLE 1

General and Purpose

Section 1.

The name of the organization is the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory

Board, herein called the JCFHA Board.

Section 2.

The principal office and place of business shall be at the offices of Mid-Ohio Regional

Planning Commission, 285 East Main Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215, or at such other place

within Franklin County, Ohio as may be designated to establish a Joint Columbus and

Franklin County Housing Advisory Board, dated February 16, 1993, herein called the

Agreement.

ARTICLE II

Membership

Section 13.

The purpose of the JCFHA Board is to function as a housing advisory board pursuant to Ohio

Revised Code Chapter 176 and to review and recommend to the Board of County

Commissioners of Franklin County all requests for inducements or issuance of housing

bonds.

ARTICLE II

Membership

Section 1.



2

(Date of Adoption)

2

The JCFHA Board shall consist of 15 members who shall be appointed by the City of

Columbus and Franklin County in the manner and from the constituencies described in the

Agreement.

Section 2.

JCFHA Board members shall be appointed for terms of three years and shall serve without

compensation.

Section 3.

Any member of the JCFHA Board may resign by tendering a resignation to the authority which

appointed such member, with a copy to the President of the JCFHA Board. Such resignation

shall take effect upon acceptance by the authority that appointed such member.  Any

member appointed to the JCFHA Board to replace a resigning member shall serve for the

balance of the term of the resigning member.

ARTICLE III

Meetings

Section 1.

Regular meetings of the JCFHA Board shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place,

within Columbus, as may be determined by the JCFHA Board. Special meetings of the JCFHA

Board may be called by the President or the Vice President or by written request of a

majority of the members.

Section 2.

Notice of each meeting of the JCFHA Board shall be mailed to each member at least one

week in advance of the meeting. The notice shall contain a tentative agenda for the meeting.

Section 3.

At the time that the Secretary mails a notice pursuant to Section 2 of this Article III, the

Secretary shall also mail such notice to the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin

County, the Mayor of Columbus, and any news media or individuals that have requested

advanced notification of JCFHA Board meetings.



3

(Date of Adoption)

3

Section 4.

A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the JCFHA Board then in office.  A

quorum is required for the JCFHA Board to convene a meeting and to conduct business at a

meeting.  Each JCFHA Board member shall have one vote on each issue presented to the

JCFHA Board. A majority of the members of the JCFHA Board, present in person at a

meeting, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The approval of a

majority of the members voting on a resolution, a quorum being present, shall constitute the

approval of the JCFHA Board; provided, however, that approval of at least eight members of

the JCFHA board shall be required to constitute approval by the JCFHA Board of any

resolution relating to housing assistance to be provided with (i) the proceeds of general

obligations to be issued pursuant to Section 133.15 of the Ohio Revised Code, or (ii) moneys

raised by taxation.

In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting

from time to time until a quorum shall be present.

Section 5.  Public notice of all meetings of the JCFHA Board shall be provided in accordance

with the provision of Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22.  All meetings and deliberations of

the JCFHA Board and any of its committees shall be open to the public, except for such

meetings and deliberations that may lawfully be closed in accordance with Ohio Revised

Code Section 121.22.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1.

The officers of the JCFHA Board shall be the President, the Vice President, and the

Secretary. The President and Vice President shall be members of the JCFHA Board. The

Secretary mayneed not be a member of the JCFHA Board. Officers shall be elected at the

first meeting of the JCFHA Board in each year and shall serve until the first meeting of the

JCFHA Board in the following year. The JCFHA Board may fill any vacancy in any office

occurring for any reason.

Section 2.



4

(Date of Adoption)

4

The President shall preside at all meetings of the JCFHA Board. The President shall perform

such other duties as shall be assisted to the President by the JCFHA Board.

Section 3.

The Vice President shall perform the duties of the President in the absence of the President

or the inability of the President to discharge the duties of the office, and shall perform such

other duties as the JCFHA Board may from time to time direct.

Section 4.

The Secretary shall be responsible for the minutes, receipts and disbursements of the JCFHA

Board, and shall perform such other duties as the JCFHA Board may from time to time direct.

ARTICLE V

Amendments

Section 1.

These Bylaws may be amended by a vote of at least eight members of the JCFHA Board at

any meeting provided that notice of the proposed amendment was included in the notice of

the meeting mailed to the members of the JCFHA Board in accordance with Section 2 of

Article III hereof.



Summary report:

Litéra® Change-Pro TDC 7.5.0.96 Document comparison done on

8/26/2015 10:54:46 AM

Style name: Default Style

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Original DMS:iw://BE-EXP-WSDMS/Bricker2/9357914/1

Modified DMS: iw://BE-EXP-WSDMS/Bricker2/9357914/2

Changes:

Add 12

Delete 5

Move From 3

Move To 3

Table Insert 0

Table Delete 0

Table moves to 0

Table moves from 0

Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.) 0

Embedded Excel 0

Format Changes 0

Total Changes: 23



9501376v1 

Joint Columbus and Franklin County 
Housing Advisory Board 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 
 

Effective Date:____________ 

1.  Purpose. The purpose of the Conflicts of Interest Policy (the “Policy”) is to protect the 
interests of the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board (the “JCFHA 
Board”) when it is considering a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest 
of any Board Member, Officer, or employee, or create a conflict of interest that detracts from the 
JCFHA Board’s mission.  

 This policy is intended to supplement, but not replace, any applicable Ohio laws 
governing conflicts of interest applicable to the JCFHA Board. JCFHA Board members are not 
public officials for purposes of the Ohio ethics law (See R.C. 176.03) unless they also serve as a 
public employee or official in another capacity.  Any JCFHA Board Member who is also subject 
to the Ohio ethics laws should be careful to comply with both Ohio law and this Policy.  

2.  Definitions. For purposes of this Policy:  

“Board Member” means a member of the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing 
Advisory Board. 

“Business Partner” means a customer, vendor, public or nonprofit board or _______. 

“Compensation” includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as material gifts or 
favors.  

 “Family Members” include spouses or domestic partners and dependent children or other 
individuals claimed as a dependent on a Board Member’s most recent tax return. 

 “Fiduciary role” means a legal or ethical obligation on the part of an individual to act in 
the best interests (the financial success) of another, such as membership on a board of 
directors or a management role in a company or partnership. 

“Financial Interest” does not include the following types of financial interests:  

(a) Pension funds or diversified mutual funds in which the account holder 
or shareholder has no control over the selection of equities held by the 
fund. 

(b) A bank account or similar depository account held on terms offered to 
the general public. 

“Interested Individual” means a Board Member, Officer or employee of the JCFHA 
Board who has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family, any of the 
following:  



9501376v1 2 F:\HCD\H A B\Ethics Policy\JCFHA Board Conflict of Interest Policy.DOCX 

(a) An Outside Interest in any Business Partner; 
(b) A Investment Interest in any Business Partner; 
(c) A Compensation arrangement with any Business Partner; 
(d) A significant potential Outside Interest or potential Investment Interest in any 

Business Partner; 
(e) Fiduciary Interest developed as a result of service on the board of a Business 

Partner, as an officer or trustee for a Business Partner, or similar relationship; 
or 

(f) Any other relationship or arrangement with a Business Partner that limits the 
Interested Individual’s ability to perform any act or duty on behalf of the 
JCFHA Board as a result of applicable state laws or regulations governing 
conflicts of interest or ethics applicable to a matter or transaction pending 
before the JCFHA Board. 

“Investment Interest” means direct ownership interest by an Interested Individual 
or Interested Individual’s Family Member in a Business Partner through stocks, 
shares or other ownership structures equal to more than _____% of the outstanding 
ownership interest. 

“Officer” means the President, the Vice President, and the Secretary of the JCFHA Board 
as defined in Article IV of the JCFHA Board’s Bylaws. 

“Outside Interest” means a financial interest between a Business Partner and an Interested 
Individual or an Interested Individual’s Family Member including, but not limited to: 

(a) Employment or other compensation arrangement, such as a consulting 
contract or services agreement; 

(b) Ownership or partial ownership (over _____%) in the Business Partner or a 
wholly-owned subsidiary or parent company of the Business partner; 

(c) Any significant contract, business arrangement, or business between a 
Business Partner and the Interested Individual or the Interested Individual’s 
Family member; 

(d) A fiduciary interest in a public or nonprofit board, commission or association 
by virtue of service with such an entity as a board member or officer.  

“Withdraw” means to completely abstain from all formal and informal discussions about 
the substance of a pending matter with any other Board Member, Officer, employee or 
representative of the JCFHA Board and taking no part in any fact-finding decisions or 
other action related to the matter either directly or indirectly. 

3.  Procedures.  

(a) Duty to Disclose. Option 1: More formal approach:  All Board Members, 
Officers and employees of the JCFHA Board must accurately and truthfully 
complete and file a Disclosure Form annually with __________. Every person 
filing a Disclosure Form shall promptly notify _________ at any time during the 



9501376v1 3 F:\HCD\H A B\Ethics Policy\JCFHA Board Conflict of Interest Policy.DOCX 

year if representations made on the Disclosure Form change and shall update the 
Disclosure Form as directed by ________. 

The _________ shall review all Disclosure Forms and updates and shall monitor 
the transactions and activities of the JCFHA Board for any proposed or actual 
activity with any Business Partner that was disclosed on a Disclosure Form.  

In connection with any actual or possible conflicts of interest with respect to a 
specific transaction or arrangement between an Interested Individual and the 
JCFHA Board, an Interested Individual shall disclose the existence and nature of 
his or her Financial Interest, Compensation arrangement, and/or fiduciary role, 
and all material facts related thereto, to ________.  

Option 2: Less formal approach:  All Board Members, Officers and employees 
must carefully review all transactions that come before the Board and disclose 
their relationship or involvement with any Business Partner to the Board.  The 
Interested Individual must disclose the existence and nature of his or her Financial 
Interest, Compensation arrangement, and/or fiduciary role, and all material facts 
related thereto. 

(b) Determining Whether a Conflict Exists.  After disclosure of the potential conflict 
and all material facts and any discussion with the Interested Individual, the 
Interested Individual shall immediately Withdraw from all participation in the 
transaction or matter giving rise to the potential conflict of interest until such time 
as the JCFHA Board advises the Interested Individual that no conflict exists or is 
continuing. 

(c) Resolving the Conflict.  The JCFHA Board shall decide if an actual conflict of 
interest exists or whether, under the circumstances, the matter is either not a 
conflict of interest or is a de minimis one with insubstantial effect that does not 
require the Board Member, Officer or employee to Withdraw.  

If the JCFHA Board determines that a conflict of interest exist that could benefit 
the private interest of the Interested Individual, the JCFHA Board must determine 
whether the transaction is in the best interest of the JCFHA Board 
notwithstanding the conflict or that the transaction should be abandoned. 

(d) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.  If the JCFHA Board has reasonable 
cause to believe that any person has failed to disclose an actual or possible 
conflict of interest, it shall inform such individual of the basis for such belief and 
provide such individual with an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to 
disclose. If, after hearing the response of the Board Member, Officer or employee 
and making such further investigation as may be warranted under the 
circumstances, the JCFHA Board determines that the individual has in fact failed 
to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, JCFHA Board may take such 
corrective action or other steps as it may deem appropriate.   



9501376v1 4 F:\HCD\H A B\Ethics Policy\JCFHA Board Conflict of Interest Policy.DOCX 

4.  Records of the Proceedings. The discussion and vote of the JCFHA Board in considering 
potential or actual conflicts of interest shall be kept as part of the regular minutes of the JCFHA 
Board.  The minutes shall reflect the names of the individuals who disclosed or otherwise were 
found to have a Financial Interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the 
nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was 
present, and the Board’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest existed.  

5.  Appearance of Impropriety. Board Members, Officers, and employees are encouraged to 
avoid any appearance of impropriety that might be created as a result of their participation in 
JCFHA Board activity, even if no conflict of interest is involved.  All Board Members, Officers 
or employees should remain diligent to avoid any action that is, or could be perceived as being, 
detrimental to the reputation, effectiveness or mission of the JCFHA Board. 

6.  Non-Solicitation. No Board Member shall solicit or accept employment or contract with 
any Business Partner who appears before the Board during or for one year after that Business 
Partner’s matter is pending before the JCFHA Board.  

7.  Annual Statements. Each Board Member, Officer and employee of the JCFHA Board 
shall annually sign a statement that affirms that such individual has received, read and agrees to 
comply with this Policy.  

 



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

Project Summary – Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority 

940 Caldwell Place 
Columbus, OH 43203 

 
Project: 
 
Number and Type of Units: 253 Units in 88 two-story residential buildings 
Type of Construction: Renovation 
Amount of Bond Request: $16,000,000 
Ownership: Metropolitan Housing Partners, Inc. 
Expected Construction Start Date: June 2016 
Expected Complete Date: July 2017 
 
Affordability 
HAB Requirement: 25% of the units must be occupied by and affordable to tenants at 50% AMI or 
less or 20% of the units must be occupied and affordable to tenants earning 45% AMI or less. 
 
There will be 102 units (40%) affordable to tenants at or below 50% AMI. 
 

• 26 units (10%) will be at or below 35% of AMI. 
• 76 units (30%) will be at or below 50% of AMI. 
• 151 units (60%) will be at or below 60% of AMI. 

 
Overview 
The proposed project involves the renovation of 253 units in 88 two-story residential buildings in Co-
lumbus, Franklin County, Ohio.  Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights are located in the King-Lincoln 
Bronzeville neighborhood on the Near East Side of Columbus.  The rehabilitation will incorporate new 
green features, upgraded wall finishes, floor finishes, interior door replacements, and other neces-
sary items to ensure the viability of the project.   
 
 
  



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 2 of 7 

TAB 1:  COVER LETTER & LETTERS OF NOTIFICATION   
  
Letters of notification were sent certified mail September 30, 2015, to various parties at the City of 
Columbus, Franklin County, and state-level elected officials representing the jurisdiction.   
 
 
TAB 2:  APPLICANT INFORMATION  
 
Project Developer: Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority 
 880 East 11th Avenue 
 Columbus, OH 43211 
 Bryan Brown, Chief Operating Officer 
    614.421.6215 
 bbrown@cmhanet.com 
  
Project Owner: Metropolitan Housing Partners, Inc. (100% GP) 
 880 East 11th Avenue 
 Columbus, OH 43211 
 Bryan Brown 
 614.421.6215 
 bbrown@cmhanet.com 
 
Applicant’s Accountant Plante Moran 
   CPA or Auditor: 66 E. State Street, Ste. 700 
 Columbus, OH 43215 
 Robert Shenton 
 877.622.2257 ext. 29064 
 
Project Bond Counsel: Squire Patton Boggs 
 4900 Key Tower 
 127 Public Square 
 Cleveland, OH 44114 
 Robert Labs 
 216.479.8601 
 robert.labes@ssd.com 
 
Project Underwriter: Red Capital Markets, LLC 
 2 Miranova Pl. 
 Columbus, OH 43215 
 Joseph Hague 
 614.857.3176 
 jhague@redcapitalgroup.com 
 
Property Manager: Community Properties of Ohio Management Services, LLC 
 910 East Broad Street 
 Columbus, OH 43205 
 Chief of Operations 
 
Project Architect: Moody Nolan 
 300 Spruce St., Suite 300 
 Columbus, OH 43215 

mailto:bbrown@cmhanet.com
mailto:bbrown@cmhanet.com


Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 614-280-3226 
 jboone@moodynolan.com 
 
Syndicator: None listed in application 
 
 
TAB 3:  INFORMATION ON THE OWNER 
 
Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority (CMHA) owns Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights.  CMHA is 
a public housing authority serving Columbus and Franklin County.  CMHA works with the City and 
County and other community-based affordable housing and supportive service providers including 
the Columbus housing Partnership, the Community Housing Network and the Columbus Community 
Shelter Board.  CMHA’s mission is to serve the community by helping people access affordable hous-
ing.  Working with their collaborative partners, CMHA develops, renovates, and maintains housing, 
promotes neighborhood revitalization, and assists residents in accessing needed social services. 
 
Since 1995 CMHA has worked with OHFA and other partners in the development of eight affordable 
housing projects with a total development cost of more than $120,000,000.   CMHAs experience 
includes the use of tax credits, HOPE VI funds, public housing capital funds, tax-exempt bonds, FHA 
mortgages, and bridge loans.  The first project constructed in Columbus was Poindexter Village, a 
community build to house over 400 families.  Today, CMHA owns more than 2,200 units throughout 
Franklin County.  CMHA houses families, elderly, and handicapped.  An additional 13,500-plus pri-
vate-sector apartments are available through the Section 8 subsidized housing programs.   
 
CMHA is the owner/developer of four low-income housing tax credit project consisting of more than 
700 units with a total development cost more than $100,000,000.   
 
CMHA has never been disbarred by HUD, never received any violations that resulted in the issuance 
of an 8823 by the IRS or other citations by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency or any housing program 
by any state or local government, and never received notice from HUD that concerns have been iden-
tified on any project with HUD participation that is reported in the Active Partners Participation Sys-
tem 
 
 
TAB 4:  INFORMATION ON THE PROJECT 
 
The proposed project will involve the renovation of Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights, 88 two-story 
residential buildings comprising 253 units.   
 
Sawyer Manor is an affordable housing development that features 116 townhouse units on a 14.23-
acre site.  CMHA provides on-site property management and maintenance services.  All of Sawyer’s 
units have private entrances, central air conditioning, washer/dryer hook-ups, and cable access.  
Site amenities at Sawyer Manor include a large community building and two playgrounds. 
 
Trevitt Heights is an affordable housing development that has 13 units comprised of a mix of duplex 
and single-family homes.  CMHA provides on-site property management and maintenance services.  
Trevitt’s units provide a full list of amenities including individual driveways, full basements, front and 
back patios, central air conditioning, and washer/dryer hook-ups.  
 



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 4 of 7 

The renovation will consist of interior and exterior upgrades and/or repairs including high-energy ap-
pliance furnaces, air conditioners, and water heaters, new flooring, and general repairs throughout 
the buildings.  Several locations will receive accessibility upgrades.   
 
Rental Assumptions, Including Units, Bedrooms, Bathrooms. Square Footage, Affordability, and Rent 
 

# of 
Units 

# of 
Bedrooms 

# of 
Bathroom 

Square 
Footage 

Affordable to 
What % of AMI 

Gross 
Rents 

3 2 1.0 953 35% $602 
13 3 1.5 1360 35% $750 
10 4 1.5 1572 35% $749 

7 3 1.0 953 50% $602 
38 3 1.5 1360 50% $750 
31 4 1.5 1572 50% $749 
14 2 1.0 953 60% $602 
76 3 1.5 1360 60% $750 
61 4 1.5 1572 60% $749 

 
Green Development 
The project is to pursue 2015 Enterprise Green Communities Criteria.  The preliminary document 
was provided upon request (inserted in Tab 4B as Attachment 5a) 
 
Handicapped Accessibility and Universal Design 
The project is to incorporate Universal Design Features as much as possible working within the con-
straints of existing building and construction. 
 
Location 
Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights are located in the King-Lincoln Bronzeville neighborhood on the 
Near East Side of Columbus.   
 
The boundaries of Sawyer Manor are Bolivar Avenue (East), St. Claire Avenue (West), Leonard Ave-
nue (North) and Caldwell Place (South). 
 
Trevitt Heights is located south of Leonard Avenue at Trevitt Street.   
 
Timeline 
Construction Start: June 2016 
Construction Complete: July 2017 
 
Rehabilitation of the properties will be completed with tenants in place or through completing vacant 
units.   
 
Market Study 
Vogt Strategic Insights (VSI) prepared a market analysis.  The executive summary states, “. . .it is our 
opinion that the market will continue to exist for the subject project following the proposed renova-
tions.”  VSI does not suggest any modifications, stating, “We conclude that the subject project is fea-
sible as proposed.” 
 
 
  



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 5 of 7 

TAB 5:  INFORMATION ON PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Property Management 
The application contains the Property Management Agreement between CMHA and Community 
Properties of Ohio Management Service, LLC. (CPO), effective March 1, 2016.  The application in-
cludes the Leasing Guidelines (Exhibit A), Management Plan (Exhibit B), and Public Housing Adden-
dum (Exhibit C).   
 
The agreement is for CPO to manage the Sawyer Manor, Trevitt Heights, and Jenkins Terrace proper-
ties.  CMHA currently manages these properties. CMHA.   
 
The application does not include information about the property management company.  The follow-
ing is taken from the CPO Website.   
 

Community Properties of Ohio (CPO) Management Services is the property manage-
ment company for the Community Properties Initiative in Franklin County. In 2003, 
Ohio Capital Corporation for Housing (OCCH), an independent, nonprofit Section 42 
equity provider, began a $100 million low-income housing preservation project to re-
habilitate 1300 Section 8 affordable housing scattered site units in seven urban 
neighborhoods, focused primarily around The Ohio State University and near east 
side areas. In addition, CPO manages several properties in other locations through-
out Ohio.  
  
CPO Management Services is a tenant-endorsed, community based management 
company that is dedicated to meeting the needs of residents and the community. 
Through our 501(c)3 non-profit foundation, Community Properties Impact Corpora-
tion (CPO Impact), we link residents to community resources to help stabilize their 
lives. CPO believes in partnering with residents to strengthen families and communi-
ties through supportive service coordination. Guided by a vision to become a model 
of affordable housing management, CPO is investing in changing the physical and 
social landscape of our neighborhoods and empowering residents to lead successful, 
productive lives. 

 
 
  



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 6 of 7 

TAB 6:  INFORMATION ON PROJECT SOURCES & USES 
 
Bond financing is being requested in order to obtain 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits. The bonds 
will be 100% cash-collateralized and will be outstanding through the anticipated placed in service 
date (approximately 24 months).   
 

Sources  
First Mortgage $                 0 
First Mortgage HDAP 1,000,000 
Third Mortgage Seller Note 10,120,000 
Fourth Mortgage 0 
Fifth Mortgage 0 
Replacement Reserves 0 
GP Capital: CMHA Dev Fee 3,571,340 
GP Capital: RHF Funds 5,433,753 
GP Capital 0  
Accrued Sponsor Loan Const. Interest 358,681 
Deferred Develops Fee 0 
Net Equity to Project 11,009,152 

Total Sources $31,492,9264 
  
Uses  
Land Purchase or $  1,265,000 
Land & Building Purchase 8,855,000 
Building Construction 0 
Building Renovations 12,882,018 
Equipment and/or Machinery 0 
Utilities, Roads, and Appurtenant Facilities 0 
Engineering and/or Architectural Fees 250,000 
Legal Fees 71,000 
Finance Charges 150,000 
Other – Third Party Reports 44,500 
Other – Reserves and Developer Fees 6,862,338 
Other – Other Expenses 1,098,070 
Fees to Issuing Political Subdivision or Agency 15,000 

Total Uses $31,492,9264 
  

 
 For further detail, please refer to Pro Forma, Sources and Uses from Tab 6 in application.  
 
 
 
Disclaimer:  The above information is provided as a summary representation of the application 
based on the facts provided by the applicant.   
 
  



Housing Advisory Board (HAB) Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

Sawyer Manor and Trevitt Heights 
 

Page 7 of 7 

NOTES AND QUESTIONS FROM EVALUATION: 
 

• No issues from legal review of the application 
• Below is a list of questions & answers provided during the evaluation period by the Applicant:  

 
Q:  In Tab 4, #3 & #4: the application cites the used of the Enterprise Green Communi-

ties Criteria Checklist” and references it in Exhibit B within Tab 4. However, the 
checklist is not included and only documentation on Home Energy Rating System 
(HERS) Analysis. Please submit the completed checklist &/or provide an explanation.  

 
 Enclosed as Attachment 5a is the preliminary document of the 2015 Green 

Communities Enterprise Criteria Checklist 
 

Q:  In Tab 6, Project Costs includes more than $10M in land and building acquisition. 
Does CMHA already own the property? If so, what is this cost?  

 
 Response from Applicant (via Project Underwriter): 

 
“Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority currently owns both Sawyer Man-
or and Trevitt Heights.  Both properties will be sold to a newly formed entity.  
The Seller Loan and Acquisition Costs are equal to $10,120,000.  The Acqui-
sition Costs will increase the basis of the project.  The increased basis will 
generate additional low income housing tax credits for the project.” 
 

Q:  In Tab 6, the financials are in small font. Can these documents be provided in larger 
font (preferably at 10) so the Board can read them more clearly?  

 
 Enclosed as Attachment 5b & 5c in Tab 6 is the larger version of financials, spe-

cifically:  
 

o New Sources & Uses in a new format that should assist in review process 
(Attachment 5b) 

o Larger print in 11x17 size of the Net Operations, Cash Flows and Rental 
Schedules from page 2 and 3 of the financial model in Tab 6 (Attachment 
5c) 

 
 
 
 
PROJECT APPLICATION 
 
 Hard Copy of Project Application available on file at MORPC, 111 Liberty Street, Suite 100, 

Columbus, OH 43215 


	HAB Agenda 01122016 FINAL
	Change-Pro Redline - Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board Bylaws and Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board By
	JCFHA Board Conflict of Interest Policy
	HAB Project App Summary Sawyer Manor Trevitt Heights 03082016.pdf
	Affordability




